2007

Kurt BentonSnedeker v. Nannette Rolfe : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This Court has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-2 (2001).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

Issue presented: Whether a police officer is without constitutional justification to stop the driver of a vehicle based on nothing more than a computer read-out of “no insurance found” on the vehicle and where no information is either known or available on who is driving the vehicle and where the vehicle is actually insured.

Standard of Review: The Utah Supreme Court established that it reviews trial courts’ conclusions of law based on a correctness of error standard, according no deference to the trial courts’ legal conclusions. State v. Pena, 869 P.2d 932, 936 (Utah 1994), accord State v. Deli, 861 P.2d 431, 433 (Utah 1993); State v. Ramirez, 817 P.2d 774, 782 (Utah 1991). This Court also has stated:

In reviewing a trial court's ruling on a motion to suppress evidence, we will not overturn [its] factual findings absent clear error. The trial court's legal conclusions, however, we review for correctness. State v. Navanick, 1999 UT App 265, ¶ 7, 987 P.2d 1276 (internal citations omitted); see also State v. Anderson, 910 P.2d 1229, 1232 (Utah 1996).

**RELEVANT PORTIONS OF TEXTS OF STATUTES, RULES AND
CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS**

Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-301. Definition--Requirement of owner's or operator's security--Exceptions [in pertinent part]

...

(2) Except as provided in Subsection (5):

(a) every resident owner of a motor vehicle shall maintain owner's or operator's security in effect at any time that the motor vehicle is operated on a highway or on a quasi-public road or parking area within the state;

Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-302. Operating motor vehicle without owner's or operator's security--Penalty

(1) Any owner of a motor vehicle on which owner's or operator's security is required under Section 41-12a-301, who operates his vehicle or permits it to be operated on a highway in this state without owner's security being in effect is guilty of a class B misdemeanor, and the fine shall be not less than:

(a) \$400 for a first offense; and

(b) \$1,000 for a second and subsequent offense within three years of a previous conviction or bail forfeiture.

(2)(a) Except as provided under Subsection (2)(b), any other person who operates a motor vehicle upon a highway in Utah with the knowledge that the owner does not have owner's security in effect for the motor vehicle is also guilty of a class B misdemeanor, and the fine shall be not less than:

(i) \$400 for a first offense; and

(ii) \$1,000 for a second and subsequent offense within three years of a previous conviction or bail forfeiture.

(b) A person that has in effect owner's security on a Utah-registered motor vehicle or its equivalent that covers the operation, by the person, of the motor vehicle in question is exempt from this Subsection (2).

Utah Code Ann. § 77-7-15. Authority of peace officer to stop and question suspect--Grounds

A peace officer may stop any person in a public place when he has a reasonable suspicion to believe he has committed or is in the act of committing or is attempting to commit a public offense and may demand his name, address and an explanation of his actions.

Amendment IV, Constitution of the United States

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

Amendment XIV, Constitution of the United States (in pertinent part)

Section. 1. All persons born or naturalized in the United States and subject to the jurisdiction thereof, are citizens of the United States and of the State wherein they reside. No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

KURT BENTON SNEDEKER,)	
)	
Appellant,)	BRIEF OF APPELLANT
)	
vs.)	
)	
NANNETTE ROLFE,)	Case No. 2007078-CA
)	
Appellee.)	

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case came before the trial court for a trial de novo on an administrative appeal from the Drivers License Division on December 20, 2006. At the trial de novo Mr. Snedeker moved the court to find the officer committed an illegal stop of Mr. Snedeker. R. 1-3. (See Addendum A for the transcript of the hearing.) Counsel for Appellee objected to the motion claiming that the exclusionary rule did not apply to the de novo trial. R. 22 at 2. Following brief argument the trial court disagreed with counsel for Appellee and heard the evidence. R. 22 at 4. Also prior to hearing testimony the parties stipulated that if the stop was found to be constitutionally valid, the elements of the crime of Driving Under the Influence in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-502, were satisfied. After hearing the testimony of the police officer and the arguments of both counsel, the trial court ruled that the stop was valid under the Fourth Amendment.

R. 22 at 17. The driver' license revocation was upheld and this appeal followed. R. 17-19.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On August 20, 2006, at approximately 11:30 p.m., a trooper from the Utah Highway Patrol observed a vehicle stopped at a traffic light. The officer performed a random computer based license plate check for the existence of insurance on that vehicle. R. 22 at 5. The officer received a read-out of "no insurance found" on the vehicle and stopped the driver of the vehicle, Mr. Kurt Snedeker. R. 22 at 6. Prior to the stop the trooper knew from his computer read-out that the vehicle was registered to a business. R. 22 at 9. After the stop was made the trooper learned that the vehicle was properly insured. R. 6-7.

The trooper acknowledged that he did not know who was driving the vehicle, and that he observed the driver for almost two blocks prior to stopping the vehicle. R. 22 at 7. During that time the officer did not observe any violation of the law and testified he stopped the vehicle only because of the computer read-out of no insurance on the vehicle. R. 22 at 7. The trooper agreed that he had no knowledge of whether the driver had a personal insurance policy which covered driving the vehicle. R.22 at 8-9. The trooper knew of no crime the driver had committed and the trooper conceded that he had to stop the vehicle before he could determine whether a crime was in progress. R.22 at 8-9.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The trooper in question violated Appellant's constitutionally protected rights against unreasonable search and seizure when he erroneously stopped him for a violation of state insurance laws without a reasonable articulable suspicion to do so. The trooper only knew that his computer read-out indicated no insurance was found on the vehicle. However, the officer lacked knowledge as to who the operator was at the time of effecting the stop and even if he had known the driver he was not able to ascertain whether the operator had knowledge that the vehicle was not insured or whether the driver had an "operator's policy" thereby exempting him from a criminal offense. Moreover, because proof of insurance on the vehicle actually was provided to the trooper once stopped, his read-out was in error and the stop based on that error unsupported by reasonable suspicion and is therefore unconstitutional.

ARGUMENT

A POLICE OFFICER IS WITHOUT CONSTITUTIONAL JUSTIFICATION TO STOP A VEHICLE BASED ON NOTHING MORE THAN A COMPUTER READ-OUT OF "NO INSURANCE FOUND" WHERE NO INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE ON WHO IS DRIVING THE VEHICLE AND THE VEHICLE IS INSURED.

Utah law states that an owner of a vehicle commits a crime if he either operates or he permits that vehicle to be operated on the highway without insurance on the vehicle. Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-302(1)(See Addendum B). That same law further indicates

that it is also a crime to operate a motor vehicle knowing that the vehicle is not insured.

Id. at -302(2)(a). However, that same statute exempts from criminal responsibility any person who has his own insurance that covers the operation of any such vehicle where insurance is not provided by the owner, to wit:

A person that has in effect owner's security on a Utah-registered motor vehicle or its equivalent that covers the operation, by the person, of the motor vehicle in question [where known to be uninsured] is exempt from this Subsection (2).

Id. at -302(2)(b).

Before an officer may legally stop and detain an individual, the United States Supreme Court has held that the officer must have reasonable suspicion based on specific and articulable facts "that criminal activity is afoot." Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1 (1968).

In State v. Sykes, 840 P.2d 825 (Utah App. 1992), the Utah Court of Appeals articulated the legal standard for reasonable suspicion to stop a vehicle.

When a police officer stops a vehicle, a "seizure" occurs, giving rise to Fourth Amendment protections. ... To pass muster under the Fourth Amendment, the seizure must be based on articulable facts which, together with rational inferences drawn from them, would lead a reasonable person to conclude defendant had committed or was about to commit a crime.

Id. at 827 (citations and quotations omitted).

The Terry Court described the practicality of this standard as follows:

[I]n justifying the particular intrusion the police officer must be able to point to specific and articulable facts which taken together with rational inferences from those facts, reasonably warrant that intrusion.... [I]n making that assessment it is imperative that the facts be judged against an objective standard.... Anything less would invite intrusions upon constitutionally guaranteed rights based on nothing more substantial than inarticulate hunches, a result this Court has consistently refused to sanction.

392 U.S. at 21-22.

This reasonable suspicion requirement also has been articulated plainly and simply in our code.

A peace officer may stop any person in a public place when he has reasonable suspicion to believe he has committed or is in the act of committing or is attempting to commit a public offense and may demand his name, address and an explanation of his actions.

Utah Code Ann. § 77-7-15 (1990).

In this case the trooper violated the above standards articulated by the Supreme Court, this Court and our legislature. The information available to the trooper did not disclose “that criminal activity was afoot.” All that the information possessed by the trooper disclosed was that his computer indicated no insurance was found on the vehicle in the database relied on by the trooper. That simple fact fails to disclose any suspicion that a crime was in progress for several reasons. First, the Utah law on insurance imposes on the vehicle owner an obligation to insure his vehicle being operated on the highway. Utah Code Ann. § -302(1). The trooper did not know, nor did he have any objective data or suspicion, that this driver was the vehicle owner. He did not know who the driver was. Moreover, he knew the owner of the vehicle to be a business, not an individual. No reasonable suspicion of a crime occurred under this theory of the statute.

Second, the insurance requirement statute insists that a driver of an uninsured vehicle possess knowledge that the vehicle is, in fact, uninsured. Utah Code Ann. § -302(2)(a). The trooper again possessed no information about the driver’s identity, let

alone what he may or may not have known about the vehicle's insurance coverage.

Again, no reasonable suspicion of a crime could have occurred under this prong of the statute.

Third, the Utah insurance requirement laws contain an exception clearly articulated that exempts from criminal activity a driver who may be self-insured for driving a vehicle otherwise uninsured. Utah Code Ann. § -302(2)(b); see also -301(2)(a) (attached at Addendum C)(explaining the option resident owners have of maintaining *either owner's or operator's* security on a vehicle). This trooper had no information that this driver, unknown to him, was driving without his own policy covering his acts and exempting him from criminal behavior. This prong also supports that no reasonable articulable suspicion of a crime could have existed here under this theory.

These statutes are not ambiguous nor are they susceptible to an interpretation that allows the trooper to find suspicion of criminal activity given the simple fact known to him at the time of the stop. In Utah when "statutory language is plain and unambiguous, [the courts] will not look beyond the same to divine legislative intent, rather, [the courts] are guided by the rule that a statute should generally be construed according to its plain language." Brinkerhoff v. Forsyth, 779 P.2d 685, 686 (Utah 1989).

In Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648, 650 (1979), the Supreme Court held that it violated the Fourth Amendment to stop an automobile for the purpose of checking the license and registration where there is neither probable cause to believe nor reasonable suspicion that the car is being driven contrary to the laws governing the operation of

motor vehicles or that either the car or any of its occupants is subject to seizure or detention in connection with the violation of any other applicable laws. The Court clarified that

[t]he essential purpose of the proscriptions in the Fourth Amendment is to impose a standard of “reasonableness” upon the exercise of discretion by government officials, including law enforcement agents, in order to safeguard the privacy and security of individuals against arbitrary invasions.

Id. at 653-54 (citations and footnote omitted). In a similar analysis, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals noted:

The fact that Vermont may order citizens to provide proof of insurance ... does not, however, mean that the state police may pull motorists over ... for the sole purpose of asking them to provide proof of insurance.

Diamondstone v. Macaluso, 148 F.3d 113, 123 (2nd Cir. 1998).

The only fact known to the trooper was that no insurance was found by the computer in his search. Importantly, that information turned out to be false as the driver produced insurance on the vehicle. Notably, even if somehow the Court construes sufficient suspicion of a crime where none exists, the fact that the information relied on by the trooper was erroneous dictates a finding that constitutional protections were violated.

In Hensley v. United States, 469 U.S. 221 (1985), the Court found that police departments permissibly may rely on bulletins or flyers from other departments where that bulletin has been issued based on either probable cause or reasonable suspicion to stop. However, the Court noted that “[i]f the flyer has been issued in the absence of a

reasonable suspicion, then a stop in the objective reliance upon it violates the Fourth Amendment.” 469 U.S. at 232.

Similarly, the Court, in an earlier matter, again explained that while reliance on police bulletins or dispatch is permissible, the underlying basis of the dispatch is subject to judicial review and must independently provide a constitutional basis. Whiteley v. Warden, Wyoming State Penitentiary, 401 U.S. 560, 566 (1971)(ruling that an otherwise illegal arrest cannot be insulated from challenge by the decision of the instigating officer to rely on fellow officers to make an arrest where the initial information is without the sufficient supporting detail and the arresting officer supplies no corroborative details). The Whiteley Court concluded that petitioner Whiteley’s arrest “violated his constitutional rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments; the evidence secured as an incident thereto should have been excluded from his trial.” Id. at 569. (quoting Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643 (1961)).

Our own Tenth Circuit has followed that instruction from Whiteley and Hensley applying the principle where a dispatcher was in error. In the case of United States v. Shareef, 100 F. 3d 1491, 1503 (10th Cir, 1996), the court upheld the lower court’s determination that the “exclusionary rule applies when an error by a dispatcher...leads to a Fourth Amendment violation.” Id. (citing State v. White, 660 So. 2d 664 (Fla. 1995) (applying exclusionary rule where failure of police personnel to maintain accurate computer records leads to violation of the Fourth Amendment)).

The White court found that while “a dispatcher is not a law enforcement officer, she is clearly an ‘adjunct[] to the law enforcement team engaged in the often competitive enterprise of ferreting out crime.’” Id. at 1502-1503 (quoting Arizona v. Evans, 514 U.S. 1 (1995)). The court further found that the dispatcher “is in a position of extreme importance to the police since she is responsible for obtaining, relaying and recording information to and from the officers in the field...” Id.

Neither a dispatcher, nor a fellow officer nor a bulletin or flyer can survive constitutional scrutiny if, itself, is in error on the underlying justification providing the probable cause or reasonable suspicion relied on by the officer. Similarly, this Court cannot countenance as constitutionally acceptable a computer read-out which provided false information as the only justification supporting the stop of the Appellant. As in the cases cited, this Court must also follow the constructs of Mapp and order the resulting arrest and the suspension of the driver’s license flowing from that constitutional error prohibited from use against the Appellant. Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471 (1963).

CONCLUSION

Based on what the officer observed from his computer read-out, he lacked a reasonable suspicion that a crime was being committed. There are no facts that the officer could articulate at the time of the stop that the operator was in violation of the insurance laws of this state. The officer lacked knowledge as to who the operator was at

the time of effecting the stop and even if he had known the driver he was not able to ascertain whether the operator had an “operator’s policy.” Moreover, because proof of insurance on the vehicle actually was provided to the trooper once stopped, his read-out was in error and the stop based on that error unsupported by reasonable suspicion and is therefore unconstitutional.

This Court should reverse the district court order denying Appellant’s request to exclude the improperly acquired evidence which supported the improper suspension of his license.