2007

# Kurt Snedeker v. Nannette Rolfe : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This appeal is taken from the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order of the Second Judicial District Court in and for Weber County, State of Utah, affirming the administrative suspension of petitioner's driver license for driving under the influence of alcohol (R. 23-26). The order was signed on February 13 and entered on the court's docket February 14, 2007, following trial *de novo*. Under Utah R. App. P. 4(c), petitioner's notice of appeal (R. 18-19), filed January 19, 2007, after the court announced its decision from the bench on December 20, 2007, is deemed filed on the date of entry of the court's final order and is therefore timely. Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(a) (West 2004) gives this Court appellate jurisdiction over the district court's review of the informal adjudicative proceedings before the Driver License Division.

## ISSUE PRESENTED UPON APPEAL

1. The traffic stop leading to petitioner's arrest for driving under the influence of alcohol was legally justified under the Fourth Amendment. This issue was preserved in both parties' arguments before the district court (R. 22 at 10-17).

Standard of Review: A trial court's determination of Fourth Amendment reasonableness is a question of law reviewed for correctness, with no deference to the trial court's application of this legal standard to the historical facts. *State v. Brake*, 2004 UT 95, ¶ 15, 103 P.3d 699, 703; *see also State v. Markland*, 2005 UT 26, ¶ 8, 112 P.3d 507, 509.

2. The district court did not need to reach the legality of the traffic stop in order to sustain the administrative suspension of petitioner's driver license. This issue was preserved in both parties' arguments before the district court (R. 22 at 2-4, 11-13).

Standard of Review: This issue arises for the first time on appeal as a result of the district court's rationale. Consequently, the decision on appeal is *de novo*.

## CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, AND RULES

All relevant text of constitutional provisions, statutes, and rules pertinent to the issue before the Court is contained in the body of this brief.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### A. Nature of the Case, Course of Proceedings, and Disposition Below

After petitioner's arrest for driving under the influence of alcohol on August 20, 2006, and an administrative hearing, the Driver License Division entered an order on

September 13, 2006 (R. 5), suspending his driver license for a period of one year, effective September 19, 2006. Following petitioner's request for administrative review, the Division sustained the hearing officer's findings of fact and conclusions of law in a letter dated October 16, 2006 (Add. A).<sup>1</sup> Petitioner then sought *de novo* review in the district court. The trial court noted the parties' stipulation that the sole issue for determination was the legality of the traffic stop that led to petitioner's arrest (R. 24), and ruled that the stop was reasonable (R. 25, Conclusions of Law at ¶ 1). Based on the parties' further stipulation that the arresting officer had probable cause to arrest petitioner for driving under the influence of alcohol (R. 25, Conclusions of Law at ¶ 2), that petitioner's breath alcohol level exceeded .08 (R. 25, Conclusions of Law at ¶ 3), and that petitioner was personally served with notice of intent to suspend or revoke his license (R. 25, Conclusions of Law at ¶ 4), the court affirmed the order of suspension (R. 25, Order at ¶ 2). This appeal ensued (R. 18-19).

B. Statement of Relevant Facts

On August 20, 2006, Utah Highway Patrol Trooper Ryan Gurney was on duty at approximately 11:30 p.m. when he pulled behind petitioner's car, which was stopped at a traffic light (R. 22 at 5:6-20). At that time, he performed a license plate check and

---

<sup>1</sup>The letter was filed in the course of the administrative proceedings underlying this case. The Court can take judicial notice of the record of this administrative proceeding. *See Moore v. Utah Technical Coll.*, 727 P.2d 634, 638 n.17 (Utah 1986) (taking judicial notice of administrative rules and regulations as well as published accounts of administrative proceedings and actions).

determined that the database was unable to locate insurance for the vehicle (R. 22 at 5:20-22). Relying on this information, Trooper Gurney followed the vehicle through the intersection after the light turned green and stopped it less than two blocks later to determine whether the vehicle was, in fact, uninsured (R. 22 at 6:8-25). At that time petitioner, the driver, produced valid proof of insurance (R. 22 at 7:1-2). However, Trooper Gurney observed the strong odor of alcohol coming from petitioner and began an investigation for driving under the influence, which ultimately led to petitioner's arrest (R. 24, Findings of Fact at ¶ 2). Petitioner has stipulated that the Trooper had probable cause for the arrest, that his breath alcohol exceeded the legal limit, and that he was properly advised of the Division's intent to suspend or revoke his license (R. 25, Conclusions of Law at ¶¶ 2-4).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Utah law requires that all motor vehicles operated on Utah's highways or quasi-public roads or parking areas be insured. Operating a vehicle without security is a violation of law. When Trooper Gurley was notified that no insurance was found for petitioner's vehicle, he reasonably suspected that the vehicle was being operated in violation of law. Stopping the vehicle to verify or dispel that reasonable suspicion was warranted by the facts known to Trooper Gurley. Because the stop of the vehicle was supported by reasonable suspicion, the district court correctly concluded that the subsequent investigation and resulting suspension of petitioner's driver license were lawful.

In the alternative, this Court may affirm the district court's decision on the ground that, because the exclusionary rule does not apply to the administrative suspension of driver licenses, the lawfulness of the traffic stop is irrelevant to validity of the suspension, and the district court should not have reached the issue. Under either rationale, the decision affirming the suspension merits affirmance here.

### ARGUMENT

#### I. THE FACT THAT NO INSURANCE WAS FOUND FOR THE VEHICLE PETITIONER WAS DRIVING CONSTITUTES REASONABLE SUSPICION THAT IT WAS BEING DRIVEN IN VIOLATION OF LAW.

Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-301(2) (West Supp. 2006) mandates that every owner or operator of a motor vehicle (other than a properly registered off-road vehicle) on Utah's highways or quasi-public roads or parking areas within the state shall maintain owner's or operator's security. Under Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-103(9) (West 2004), "[o]wner's or operator's security" means an insurance policy or surety bond meeting statutory coverage limits and other requirements, a deposit with the state treasurer meeting statutorily specified criteria, a statutorily compliant certificate of self-funded coverage, or a policy issued by the statutory Risk Management Fund, which covers certain government-owned property. Violation of the surety requirement constitutes a class B misdemeanor. *See* Utah Code Ann. § 41-12a-302(1) (West 2004).

When Trooper Gurley performed a license plate check on the vehicle petitioner was operating, his computer showed that no insurance was found for the vehicle (R. 24,

Findings of Fact at ¶ 1). Based on this information, he had reasonable, individualized suspicion that the vehicle was being driven in violation of law. Under the Fourth Amendment, this reasonable, individualized suspicion was sufficient to justify Trooper Gurley's stop of the vehicle to determine whether it was, in fact, insured.

Petitioner argues that Trooper Gurley lacked reasonable suspicion to stop his vehicle because there were possible innocent explanations for the indication that no insurance was found for the vehicle. The Utah Supreme Court has rejected this proposition. In *State v. Markland*, the court observed that "it is settled law that an officer is not obligated to rule out innocent conduct prior to initiating an investigatory detention. This is because the public interest in investigating criminal activity is sufficiently important to justify the minimal intrusion into personal security that such investigatory detentions entail." *Markland*, 2005 UT 26, ¶ 17, 112 P.3d at 511 (citing *United States v. Arvizu*, 534 U.S. 266, 277 and 273 (2002)) (internal citations omitted). The court recognized that "[a]s long as the underlying facts, and reasonable inferences drawn from those facts, justify the conclusion that reasonable suspicion existed at the inception of the level-two stop, the Fourth Amendment is satisfied." *Id.* at ¶ 19, 112 P.3d at 511. The court further noted that "[i]ndeed, 'the likelihood of criminal activity need not rise to the level required for probable cause, and it falls considerably short of satisfying a preponderance of the evidence standard.'" *Id.* at ¶ 10, 112 P.3d at 510 (quoting *Arvizu*, 534 U.S. at 274).

The state's supreme court has also agreed with the United States Supreme Court that "as long as an officer suspects that the 'driver is violating any one of the multitude of applicable traffic and equipment regulations,' the police officer may legally stop the vehicle." *State v. Lopez*, 873 P.2d 1127, 1132 (Utah 1994) (quoting *Delaware v. Prouse*, 440 U.S. 648, 661 (1979)). Moreover, "[a]n observed violation . . . is not required." *Id.* See also *Commonwealth v. Bolton*, 2003 PA Super 314, 831 A.2d 734 (holding that a computer readout indicating lack of required insurance on vehicle provides articulable and reasonable grounds to stop vehicle "tantamount to probable cause[,]"; 2003 PA Super 314, ¶ 10). Under these standards, the fact known to Trooper Gurley when he initiated the stop--that no insurance was found in the database for the vehicle petitioner was driving--provided reasonable suspicion that the vehicle was being driven in violation of Utah law and justified the minimal intrusion of stopping the vehicle to verify or dispel the reasonable inference the trooper drew from that information.

The district court correctly concluded that because no insurance was found for the vehicle when Trooper Gurley entered the license plate number into the database, the stop of the vehicle was reasonable. Under the standards articulated in Utah precedents, the district court's conclusion warrants affirmance.

## II. IN THE ALTERNATIVE, THIS COURT CAN AFFIRM ON THE GROUND THAT THE EXCLUSIONARY RULE DOES NOT APPLY TO ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS.

Although both parties raised the applicability of the exclusionary rule in their arguments to the district court (R. 22 at 2:23-25, 3:4 - 4:17), the court did not address the

rule in its decision; instead, after concluding that the traffic stop was supported by reasonable suspicion, it relied on the parties' stipulation that, if the stop was lawful, Trooper Gurley had probable cause to arrest petitioner for driving under the influence of alcohol; that petitioner's breath alcohol level exceeded .08; and that petitioner was personally served with notice of the Division's intent to suspend or revoke his driver license. However, this Court may affirm the district court's decision on any ground supported by the record. *See First Sec. Bank of Utah v. Creech*, 858 P.2d 958, 963 (Utah 1993).

Because the exclusionary rule does not apply to civil proceedings, the district court did not need to reach the validity of the traffic stop in order to sustain the suspension of petitioner's driver license.<sup>2</sup> This Court, likewise, need not reach the validity of the stop,

---

<sup>2</sup>The United States Supreme Court has repeatedly declined to extend the Fourth Amendment exclusionary rule to civil proceedings. *See Pa. Bd. of Probation and Parole v. Scott*, 524 U.S. 357, 353 (1998) (holding exclusionary rule inapplicable to adult parole proceedings); *United States v. Janis*, 428 U.S. 433, 454 (1976) (declining to extend exclusionary rule to civil tax proceedings); *United States v. Calandra*, 414 U.S. 338, 349-52 (1974) (declining to apply exclusionary rule to grand jury proceedings); *State ex rel. A.R.*, 1999 UT 43, ¶ 20, 982 P.2d 73, 78 (holding exclusionary rule does not apply in child protection proceedings); *State v. Jarman*, 1999 UT App 269, ¶ 7, 987 P.2d 1284, 1286 (holding exclusionary rule does not apply in adult probation revocation proceedings). The sole exception is *One 1958 Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania*, 380 U.S. 693 (1965), in which the exclusionary rule was held applicable in a nominally civil forfeiture proceeding that was found to be quasi-criminal in nature because of its punitive purpose. The Utah Supreme Court has already held that license revocation proceedings are intended to protect the public, not to punish, and that they are not quasi-criminal. *Ballard v. State*, 595 P.2d 1302, 1304-05 (Utah 1979); *see generally* Michelle L. Hornish, Note, *Excluding the Exclusionary Rule*, 65 Mo. L. Rev. 533, 542 (2000) (concluding that a majority of states does not apply the exclusionary rule in administrative license hearings).

but can affirm on the ground that the evidence before the district court, in the form of the parties' stipulation, established all the statutory criteria necessary to sustain the suspension: "(i) whether a peace officer had reasonable grounds to believe the person was driving a motor vehicle in violation of Section 41-6-44 [driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs] or 41-6-44.6 [driving with any measurable controlled substance in the body]; (ii) whether the person refused to submit to the [chemical] test; and (iii) the test results, if any." Utah Code Ann. § 53-3-223(4)(c) (West 2004). Affirming on this ground avoids basing the decision on a determination that was, in fact, irrelevant to the suspension's legality.